
PRELIMINARY MINUTES 
 

VILLAGE OF LUDLOW 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

TUESDAY, August 1, 2023 

 

6:00 PM  

 

HEALD AUDITORIUM 

 

 

Village Trustees Meeting – Zoom Link 

 

Meeting ID: 984 2249 8745 

Passcode: 045593 

 

One tap mobile 

+13126266799, 98422498745#,,,,*045593# US (Chicago) 

+16469313860, 98422498745#,,,,*045593# US 

 

Dial by your location 

https://zoom.us/u/acaJsrnL7x 

 

 

TRUSTEES PRESENT:   

Bob Brandt, Chairman Justin Hyjek    

 

TRUSTEES ABSENT:   

Earl Washburn      

 

STAFF:   

Brendan McNamara   

 

OTHERS PRESENT:   

Andrea Goldman Paul Hinsen Kendra Rickerby – Okemo Valley TV 

Meredith Milliken Jean Strong  

 

 

1. Call To Order 

 

A. Bob Brandt called the regular meeting of the Village Trustees to order at 6:00 p.m.   

 

 

2. Consideration of any Changes, Additions or Removal to the Agenda 

 

A. Bob Brandt advised that no changes are needed.  

 

 

3. Approve Minutes from Previous Meetings 

 

A. Bob Brandt advised the minutes to be approved are from the regular meeting on June 6, 2023 

and the Special Joint Meeting of July 24, 2023. 



 

 

Village of Ludlow – Board of Trustees  August 1, 2023 

Preliminary Meetings Minutes  Page 2 of 4 

 

 
B. MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Bob Brandt to approve minutes from the 

regular meeting of June 6, 2023 and the Special Joint Meeting of July 24, 2023 as 

submitted.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

4. Comments from Citizens 

 

A. Paul Hinsen introduced himself and said that he works for a Vermont Based Website company.  

He said that Catalist charges more than his company. 

B. Brendan McNamara asked Mr. Hinsen to send him his contact information. 

C. Jean Strong asked about the Public Hearing that was scheduled with the Planning Commission 

as part of this meeting. 

D. Brendan McNamara said it was improperly warned and will be scheduled for the September 

meeting. 

 

 

5. Review & Possibly Approve Bids 

 

A. Village Paving – Mill Street/Meadow Street 

i. Brendan McNamara said that he has spoken to Ron Tarbell, and they agreed to hold off on 

this because of the damages from the flood. FEMA will be involved in some of the repairs. 

B. WW ¾ Ton Truck with Plow 

 

VENDOR BID 

Benson’s Chevrolet, Inc. Net = $31,090.00   Model Yr. = 2024 

Ford of Claremont Net = $31,677.00   Model Yr. = 2023 

Springfield Autosaver Group - GMC Net = $39,631.00   Model Yr. = 2024 

i. Brendan McNamara said that Benson’s is low bidder. 

ii. MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Bob Brandt to approve the bid from 

Benson’s Chevrolet for $31,090.00. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

6. Sewer Allocation Request  

 

A. 65 Pine Hill Road – 3 additional bedrooms 

i. Brendan McNamara said that there are no issues. 

ii. MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Bob Brandt to approve the allocation and 

connection as requested.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

7. Discuss Vail Bridge Sewer Line Project 

 

A. Brendan McNamara advised that the project has changed.  They have to deal with the sewer 

line under the bridge.  Due to the flood, they may have to get into the water to protect the line 

with gravel and rocks.  Scott Jensen from State River Management  has been there. There is a 

problem where the Jewel Brook comes into the Black River.  He said that they have 

covered the exposed pipe. 
 



 

 

Village of Ludlow – Board of Trustees  August 1, 2023 

Preliminary Meetings Minutes  Page 3 of 4 

 

 
 

8. Department Head Reports  

 

A. Brendan McNamara said that the departments have been working straight out. 
 

 

9. Aged Receivables Report: 

 

A. Brendan McNamara said that Waste Water is okay; there are only a few over 120 days - 

$28,000.  We are communicating with the property owners.  We have to be careful, 

especially because of the flood.  When addressed, 1 or 2 will have a drastic effect on the 

report. 

 
 

10. Other Business 

 

A. Depot Street Bridge 

i. Justin Hyjek asked about the bridge. 

ii. Brendan McNamara said that they will be paving and doing other repairs. 

iii. Bob Brandt said also some little patches. 

B. Jean Strong said that all of the employees have done a great job., under some not so 

great conditions.  She said the response was overwhelming. 

C. Justin Hyjek agreed that the entire community really came together.  He applauded the 

resiliency and camaraderie. 

D. Bob Brandt said everyone went above and beyond.. 
 

 

11. Municipal Manager Updates: High Street & Pleasant Street Ext. Projects 

 

A. Brendan McNamara said that we have made progress in the last 3 weeks.  We are in a 

good position.  We are getting things accomplished. The Community Center has been 

and still is helping everyone.  The Water/Waste Water Plant is functioning at summer 

capacity.  He said that the sewer line behind Village Pizza was fixed today and back 

online.  He said that the plant, highway and M&M all worked together.  He said that 

Vail Bridge is being taken care of.  There is concern about Pond Street by the Fire 

Station Bridge.  We are concerned that the flow from the railroad will increase into the 

culvert off the mountain being filled with debris, silt and gravel.  He said that on 

Saturday, the water was right against the abutment and Mike O’Neill got an excavator 

and cleared it out.  It relieved the stress on the bridge. It would not have been good if 

Mike had not been able to get in there. We have to do a hydrologic study of that area.  If 

that bridge washes out,  ½ of the town will be isolated.  He said he met with FEMA 

today.  At this stage, it’s paperwork, FEMA requirements and proper bids, how and 

where to get funding. It is also important to make sure people are calling 211 to register 

for assistance.  We are in the transition stage and the town is full steam ahead and we 

need to follow all of the FEMA requirements.  This recovery phase will be for years – 

it’s a long process. We have still not been assigned a FEMA representative, yet. 



 

 

Village of Ludlow – Board of Trustees  August 1, 2023 

Preliminary Meetings Minutes  Page 4 of 4 

 

 

B. Justin Hyjek said there are ACCD grants available from the state along with other 

municipal grants.  He said that we need to do repairs on our dams, sidewalks and 

bridges.  We are maintaining our pre-flood procedures as well as working with the 

damages from the floods.  He said that we need to look at how the Town and Village 

being separate entities affects grants. 

C. Bob Brandt asked if there is a deadline to register through 211. 

D. Brendan McNamara said not at this time, but he does urge people to do it as soon as 

possible.  The agencies will be in town through Friday. 

E. Jean Strong asked who is responsible to clean up the river at Pleasant Street. 

F. Brendan McNamara said that is unclear at this time.  There are conflicting responses 

from ANR. 

 
 

12. Set Date for Next Meeting 

 

A. Next regular meeting will be on September 5, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

 

13. Sign Warrant Orders 

 

A. Bob Brandt said they would sign Warrant orders. 

 

 
14. Possible Executive Session/Personnel/Contracts/Legal Issues 

 

A. Bob Brandt said that an Executive Session is not needed. 

 

 

15. Adjourn 

 

A. MOTION to adjourn by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Bob Brandt.  Motion passed 

unanimously. 

B. Meeting adjourned at 6:28 p.m.   

            

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Lisha Klaiber 

 

             

             

Bob Brandt, Chairman of Trustees   Earl Washburn, Vice Chair 

 

 

        

Justin Hyjek 

 

 


